Questions Re RFA DE-PS02-04EH04022

1. Response to RFA:  On page 3-4 the RFA lists 13 “goals” (Numbered a-n).  In responding to the RFA, do we have to prepare a statement of work for each of these goals in the order they are listed, or can we organize a statement of work according to our program flow as long as this statement of work clearly responds to each of the stated goals?
The organization of the proposal is at the discretion of the bidder.

2. Evidence of Support: The RFA goals imply that applicants need to have support from the populations they intend to serve or access to them.   However, neither the goals nor the review criteria require the importance of showing such support and access.  

a. Should applicants demonstrate such support and access?
Applicants may demonstrate such support and access if they so desire.
b. Should applicants include letters of support from organizations representing the populations to be served?  If yes, are we correct to assume that we should scan in such letters into a PDF file that would be included as an electronic attachment?
If these letters are available, they may be included. The RFA indicates that Word files should be used.
3. Program Eligibility.  The RFA notes that a former worker is “someone” who separated before 1998.  This may or may not mean “anyone” who separated before 1998.  Clarification of eligibility would be helpful for several reasons:
a. Chronology:  what does before 1998 mean?  Is it before January 1, 1998 or is it before December 31, 1998?
Before 1998 means any date before January 1, 1998.

b. Risk ascertainment.  Unless a person was employed for a certain duration of time, and unless a sufficient time has elapsed, a medical evaluation is not likely to reveal significant health outcomes.  Can you or should we propose eligibility criteria based on risk so that unneeded medical examinations are not provided.
There are no risk-based eligibility requirements for participation in this program.

c. Previously examined workers.  Are there circumstances in which workers who participated in a previous FWP eligible for the National program?  For instance, if a worker’s health condition changed since his or her first exam, will the nationwide program evaluate his/her condition?  Can you or should we propose eligibility criteria for previously examined workers?
This program is intended to provide a one-time medical evaluation for all for DOE workers. If applicants have formulated a plan to serve all new participants and to rescreen formerly served participants as they become symptomatic, all within the budgetary constraints of this cooperative agreement, they may present this plan for DOE’s consideration in their proposal.

d. Intermittent employment.  A current worker may also be a former worker.  Some workers (e.g., a construction worker may have worked on a DOE site and separated before 1998, and then gone back to work again in year 2000, or he/she may have worked at DOE facility X before 1998, gone to work at facility Y after separating from facility X.)  Can you or should we propose eligibility criteria for intermittent employment?
Although applicants may propose eligibility criteria for intermittent employment, it is assumed that the site occupational medical facilities will be available to current workers.

4. Occupational Medicine Content:  The RFA goals imply that occupational medicine is an essential expertise for the conduct of the program, but neither the RFA nor the review criteria require this.  In fact, goal (f) seems to favor primary care providers with no expertise in occupational medicine.
a. Should applicants demonstrate expertise in occupational medicine?
b. Should applicants demonstrate access to a national network of qualified, credentialed and insured local medical providers?
As stated in the RFA, DOE encourages the use of local personal physicians to administer the medical evaluations of the former workers. However, it is assumed that these personal physicians would be working within the structure of a strong program with appropriate infrastructure, management, supervision, etc. DOE does not have any preconceived notion as to how a successful program should be structured.  However, the use of personal physicians to perform or arrange for performance of any procedure mentioned in the RFA is considered to be an acceptable and reasonable course of action.

5. Medical Protocol (Goal (c) and Attachment A). 

a. The protocol does not include a core (or basic) physical exam.  As we recall it, when this protocol was developed DOE assumed that the exposure specific modules would be provided in addition to a core exam. Can DOE describe the core (or basic) exam that it expects every participant to receive in addition to any of the exposure-specific modules, or should we propose the core examination functions?
Applicants may describe how they would supplement the components of the medical protocol attachment as they deem appropriate. However, this is not required as part of the response to the RFA.
b. The medical protocol lists "External ionizing radiation >20 REM Total Effective Dose Equivalent" as a trigger for an exam.  Most workers don’t know who much radiation exposure they have had, and may not be able to access their dose records.  For many workers such records are not available.  Can DOE clarify how it expects the program to determine this risk threshold, and will DOE assist with this under the cooperative agreement?
As mentioned in the RFA, applicants are asked to prepare their bids as if all components of the medical protocol will be required.  In the actual execution of the program, DOE will engage in discussions with the successful bidder as to how to deal with questions about any possible but unverifiable exposure.  DOE does not expect the awardee to engage in any dose reconstruction activities.
6. Use of Personal physicians.
Goal (f) seems to favor use of personal physicians.  We have on occasion used this approach in the past, and this experience has demonstrated that it is not a cost effective approach, since (1) few personal physicians have the needed capabilities (e.g., pulmonary function testing) to perform a basic occupational medical examination, nor the needed expertise and (2) few personal physicians are likely to have more one eligible participant in their practice.  Using this approach would mean the need to orient and educate many thousand physicians each year, which is very time consuming and frequently ineffective.  Therefore, should not use of personal physicians be a default; that is, only when there is no local medical provider who is qualified in occupational medicine or its equivalent, or when use of such provider is impractical, then a personal physician may be an appropriate? 
Although DOE encourages the use of local personal physicians to administer the medical evaluations of the former workers, this is not a requirement and reasonable alternative approaches will be considered.
7. Use of Community Physicians.  We generally favor the use of community physicians. However, there may be instances where use of “swoops” by mobile medical teams may be more cost effective and practical.  Does the RFA allow for this alternative if it is demonstrated to be cost effective?
DOE will consider any reasonable approach to serving participants, including the use of “swoops” in certain circumstances.

8. Beryllium testing (goal (e)) 

a. Does this program provide a repeat BeLPT for former workers who received an initial BeLPT in the site-specific FWP exams?
Yes.

b. If a worker receives a BeLPT test in year 3 or later under this program, how can she/he get another test 3 years later?
This decision will be made at a future date.

9. Work History.  The RFA (Goal (c)) implies that a work history should be used to determine the kinds of medical examination procedures that should be used.  However, the RFA does not require a description of the work history procedure.  Should the work history procedure be described in detail?
Applicant may include the work history procedure in their proposals if so desired.

10. Communicating Results.  The RFA (Goal (d)) indicates that information must be communicated to former workers about their health risks as determined by the results of the medical examination. Does this mean that the possible causal relationship between their health status as identified in the program medical evaluation and their prior DOE-related work exposures must, when possible, be communicated to program participants?
DOE will engage in discussions related to this and other issues with the successful bidder. 

11. Travel Distance (goal (h)).  It is our experience that the maximum reasonable travel distance is 80 miles each way, and for many elderly participants it is even shorter, especially if providers are located in major cities.  Many areas are not well-served by public transportation.  Will DOE allow the program to make a more flexible determination of transportation needs provided that reasonable criteria can be developed?
DOE will engage in discussions related to this and other issues with the successful bidder.

12. Cooperation with DOE.  On p 15 of the RFA, DOE describes its “substantial involvement”.  In addition to what is described, can we assume that it is DOE’s intent to (1) help supply site history documentation for sites where there have been no FWPs, and (2) provide access to personnel lists that contain names and addresses of former workers?  
DOE will attempt to facilitate transfer of existing documentation on site history, mailing lists, and any other information that will be of potential use to the successful bidder.

13. IRB Review.  The RFA does not describe any IRB procedures.  

a. Will IRB review be required, and if so, will we use our IRBs or DOE IRBs for this review?  
Although DOE perceives that Institutional Review Boards (IRBs) will be involved in the execution of this program, there is no requirement for discussion of that interaction in the bidder’s response to this RFA. DOE will engage in discussions related to this and other issues with the successful bidder.

b. Will procedures for beryllium testing require review the DOE Central Beryllium IRB?
DOE will engage in discussions related to this and other issues with the successful bidder. 

14. ICFs.  Current FWPs require signed consent forms to a) participate in the program, b) participate in the interview, c) participate in the medical exam, d) have a BeLPT test, etc.  Site and national IRB’s review and accept/reject the text of these forms and all other materials in the protocol manual.  
a. Will consent forms be needed to participate in the program, get an interview, and the basic medical exam?  
b. If yes, will the awardee be expected to develop them or will DOE provide them?

The applicant may present approaches to the use of informed consent forms (ICFs) in their proposal. DOE will engage in discussions related to this and other issues with the successful bidder.

15. HIPAA.  Goal (l) requires “compliance with HIPAA and all relevant portions of the Privacy Act.  

a. Regarding HIPAA, the current FWP requires compliance with the intent of HIPAA.  Can we use this statement in response to this RFA as well? 
b. Can you specify which portions of the Privacy Act are relevant? 
The applicant may present approaches to these issues in their proposal. DOE will engage in discussions related to this and other issues with the successful bidder.

16. Satisfaction Survey.  In goal (n) the RFA refers to surveys developed for Johns Hopkins and Mayo.  Each of these institutions have many different surveys.  Can DOE provide a more specific reference or copy? 
Applicants may determine for themselves which, if any, of the surveys formulated by Johns Hopkins, the Mayo Clinic, or any other institution including their own, might serve as useful examples of instruments to elicit useful feedback from program participants.

17. DUNS Number.  The RFA on page 6 could be interpreted to suggest that consortia who apply may need to obtain a unique DUNS number.  If the applicant organization for a consortium already has an established DUNS number, is there any reason why that DUNS number cannot be used for this program? 
If the applicant organization already has an established DUNS number, that is the number that should be used for this program.   A unique DUNS number for this project is not required.
18. Number of Examinations.  The RFA expects 2,000 exams in year 1.  However, it is not clear if the RFA expects 10,000 exams per year for each of the subsequent years, or if it expects the number to increase gradually to 10,000 per year.  To make budgets consistent across applications, can DOE specify a number of exams expected for each year for years 2, 3, 4, 5?
As stated in the RFA, in order to provide the basis for cost comparisons across proposals, the applicants should prepare their budgets as if services will be scaled up to serve 10,000 participants per year during each of the subsequent years of the program.

19. Detailed Budgets. The RFA indicates that it wants detailed budgets for each year.  For budgeting purposes, is it correct that for medical examinations we are supposed to assume that each person examined receives all of the procedures listed in the medical protocol in Attachment 1 even though in real life most participants will only require some of the procedures, and even though by including all procedures our total budget could exceed the maximum award size (budget ceiling) provided for in the RFA?
Although not every participant will actually require every component of the medical protocol, this assumption must be made for cross comparison of budgets submitted for the same services by the various applicants. If an applicant feels that all medical evaluations cannot be made within budget range mentioned in the RFA, this should be stated and discussed in the proposal.

20. Travel costs (Goal (h))  

a. Can we assume that mileage is paid at the allowable rate set by the GSA? 
Yes.

b. The RFA does not specify whether it will pay for meals, and does not give a rate for lodging.  Can we use the applicable Federal travel regulations established by GSA, including per diem rates, for budgeting purposes?
Yes.
c. Can we plan to prepay or provide travel advances since some participants cannot afford to pay and then be reimbursed?

DOE will engage in discussions related to this and other issues with the successful bidder.

     21.  Is there any preferential status for minority and women owned small business?
Do you have a list of vendors for potential vendors to contact re:teaming?

Although minority and women owned small business participation is encouraged and welcomed, there are no provisions in the RFA for preferential status for minority or woman owned Small Business Concerns.
Since the RFA is accessed by vendors through the IIPS system, the DOE does not have or maintain a list of potential vendors.
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